DRAINAGE DISTRICT 3 PUBLIC HEARING
ON ENGINEER'S REPORT ON REPAIRS OR IMPROVEMENTS TO MAIN TILE
OF DD 3
Monday, August 16, 2021 10:00 AM

8/16/2021 - Minutes
. Open Meeting

Drainage District 3 Chairperson Gary Rabe opened the meeting. Also present were Trustee Denny
Prochaska; Trustee Jeff Heinzeroth; Dave Johnson, Attorney Lee Gallentine, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates
(CGA); Mike Nissly; Gloria Lange; John Barlow; Michael Pearce, Network Specialist; and Denise Smith,
Clerk.

. Approve Agenda
Motion by Prochaska to approve the agenda. Second by Heinzeroth. All ayes. Motion carried.
. Approve Minutes

Motion by Heinzeroth to approve the minutes of Drainage District 3 Minutes for meeting dated 06-01-2021.
Second by Prochaska. All ayes. Motion carried.

. Introductions/Attendance

Introductions were made and attendance verified.
. DD 3 - Discuss W Possible Action - Engineer's Report On Repairs And Improvements To Main Tile Of DD 3

Gallentine stated he would go through the report briefly, will use the report as an outline and a guide, Zeb
Stanbrough of CGA signed the report, so we will talk about it. Gallentine stated page 1 provides some
introduction and background. Gallentine stated DD Trustees became aware of issues on the main tile, of
DD 3, reported by a landowner at the time, as a result of that the Trustees directed CGA to draft this report
for possible repairs or improvements. Gallentine stated this started last fall back in November, Gehrke was
out there and they were hired to do some of those repairs, and when they were out there they stated hey
this is beyond this small repair, and we need to look at the bigger picture. Gallentine referenced the map in
the report and talked about the location, Gallentine stated the are area on the map is on on the main tile, on
the existing tiles we didn't do any investigation on, this green color is the area we did investigation on is red
in color. Gallentine stated the area that the railroad runs through here, that is | Ave right there, just east of |
Ave 3/8ths of a mile, and that is the downstream limits and then you go upstream, and we end up crossing |
Ave and we end up west of | Ave approximately 1/4 mile, so that is the area of the main tile we are talking
about, Gallentine stated he knows there have been emails come through that are talking about other
portions of the main tile, those are not contained within this report, but we can sure talk about them too.
Gallentine stated that is the area we concentrated on, and that is the issue where the blowouts and the
issues were, and as you can see there was 3 sinkhole blowouts, area of concern down in here, one right
east and one more up in this bend where that tile takes a hoo, that is the rough area we are talking about
and asked if anyone has questions on that.

Gallentine moved on to page 3 to touch a little bit on history, this is transitioned into DD 3, so it was the
third district established in the County so it has been around a long time, originally this was filed back in
1906, and in 1907, the Board of Supervisors at that time decided to go ahead and establish the district, and
originally this district was designed as an open ditch district, this was not tiled at the upper end, originally it
had an open ditch all the way from the beginning to this upper edge, and that is 1908 that is how they
awarded the construction contract for this was to build the entire open ditch. Gallentine stated but by 1913,
this upper end here, some landowners want to fill in the open ditch and put in tile, they requested that and



had a hearing on that around the 1913 era. Gallentine stated it gets kind of murky and ugly from about 1913
to 1917, they wen through about three different engineers and about 3 or 4 contractors, but the end result
was this upper end got filled in and they installed tile, and instead of the original open ditch up there they
filled it in and if Gallentine remembers right this tile goes all the way to JJ Ave, and then that is where the
open ditch picks up. Gallentine stated the open ditch in this area is pretty short lived less than 20 years,
but it was established at one time. Gallentine stated then as far as the tile goes, it was pretty quiet after
1917, there has been a few repairs, at least one back in the 1990's, not a whole lot to talk about on the tile,
the open ditch had some work done and there has been some cleanouts, there was a pretty major cleanout
6 years ago, but the tile itself has been pretty quiet, we don't necessarily view that as a lack of work being
done on the tile, we probably view that as a lack of documentation on the work, back in the 1950's and
1960's they just went out and did it, especially if the Secondary Road crew did it, they just went out and
fixed it, you might see an occasional bill at most, but even hose kind of got lost sometimes. Gallentine
stated we think that there has been some work done out there in the past, especially with the conditions we
found, but it hasn't been very well documented.

Gallentine stated what we did for our investigation, Gehrke investigated at the sinkholes, and CGA was out
to observe, we surveyed the location of the sinkholes, we also took some pictures upstream, that type of
thing. Gallentine stated roughly this is 4,800' in here that we covered with those, so that is what we did for
investigation, moving on to page 7, and what we found in this tile itself is not in good shape, every spot we
dug it up there is obviously a sinkhole reflected at the surface, and all of them were cracked, most every
one of them the top is starting to vee down a little bit, the cracked tile don't bother Gallentine as much,
because they kind of support each other but when the top starts to vee down one side or the other is going
to start to come in, others the top is coming down and the bottom is coming up, because you have cracks
on the top, bottom and sides, and if you go up, we can see some of those pictures here that Gallentine can
show, this shows the top is coming down and the bottom is starting to come up a little, this one is not as
bad as some of them we have seen, this was down in area where it is not being farmed. Gallentine stated
you can tell it is just a matter of time before it doesn't have enough support and it comes down and makes
a sinkhole. Gallentine stated here is another photo very similar where the side is trying to come in and it is
starting to come down on the top and the bottom is starting to point up or hinge up, usually you don't see
the bottoms hinging up like that it must have enough force downward on it that it is to starting to churn that
up. Gallentine referenced another photo that he states is less severe, it is cracked on the sides and bottom
and the top is just starting to vee down just a little bit and you can see there is some soil exposed.
Gallentine stated what happens when this tile gets surcharged, this soil gets wet, when it gets wet this soil
gets heavier, and that is usually when you end up with a collapse of some kind, this one wasn't as severe
but is still a point of concern for collapse potential. Gallentine referenced another photo and stated this one
is really, really bad because you can see this one here, and over here, is cracking on the sides, and the
cracks aren't even lined up, so any time you don't get those cracks lined up and it starts veeing down, you
have more of a chance of soil infiltration, Gallentine stated he should have pointed out that the images were
from these areas, every spot we dug it up at, conditions were pretty similar.

Gallentine asked if there were questions on what we found. A landowner asked how big the was. Gallentine
stated it was 26" to 24" tile. Gallentine stated there may have been some 28" tile, when it gets that
distorted it is really heard to tell. Gallentine stated they never really made them perfectly round anyway, we
have seen ones that are cracked and side to side versus up and down, they have been off 1" to 2", just the
way they manufactured them. Gallentine asked if there were other questions about what we found.
Gallentine stated if not we will move on. Gallentine stated their concern with the tile condition is you are
going to get more sinkholes, as you get more sinkholes, you have a chance for more soil to get washed
into the tile, eventually it will flush, if you have enough flow, but we are a mile from the open ditch.
Gallentine stated it is going to take a long time to flush out into the open ditch, and eventually when it does,
we will have to clean out the open ditch because of it, and the landowner up here at the top, will never get
that topsoil back, when we clean it out, it will just go right next to the top of the open ditch. Gallentine
stated there will be restrictions in drainage capacity if something isn't done, let alone the fact that the tile
like this with all the sharp chards sticking up in there does not flow near as efficiently as a nice round pipe,
you have a reduction in capacity just because of the shape and friction.

Gallentine stated for repairs, the method we are suggesting in replacing the tile is pretty straight forward,
whatever the existing tile route is, just replace it along the same tile route, and we would do it with equal or
comparable size, they don't make 26" pipe or they don't make 28" pipe any more so we would go to



whatever is available or the next size larger that is available one of the two. Gallentine stated we would put it
alongside the same route, it may not be in the same trench,m it may be offset 10’ to 15', a lot of contractors
do that for ease of construction, that way they don't have to fight the water that is coming down the old tile
as they are constructing the new tile, but we would end up pulling out the old tile as they go or when they
are done, any private tile that were hooked to it, those would be located and hooked to the new tile, so
when Gallentine says same route, it may not be the exact same spot, but it is pretty close, within 20’ or so.
Gallentine stated the other thing he would like to add, in regard to the NRCS and jurisdictional wetlands,
they have typically regarded repairs as not impacting jurisdictional wetlands however, we recommend any
time a drainage project is talked about, go talk to the NRCS, under federal guidelines, jurisdictional
wetlands are treated just like your medical records, they are confidential, Gallentine can't get a copy of
them, the only people that can get a copy of them is either the landowner or the tenant, nobody else can.
Gallentine asked if there were questions on the proposed repair. Rabe asked if some of this are in question
was in a wetland. Landowner stated it is is in CRP actually, it is a new 10 year contract, theoretically it is
farmable. Gallentine stated CRP is pretty much the same route, it is all confidential and they won't disclose
any of that, that is just the way the programs are set up. Gallentine stated it isn't the fault of the people in
lowa Falls, it was the people in DC that determined all that.

Gallentine stated so that was the repair option that we covered, the second option we called an
improvement option, and Gallentine will explain a little bit of difference in that one, those terms are IOWA
Code definitions, a repair is where you are trying to put something back to it's original state or efficiency if
you can, an improvement option is where you try to improve capacity, or enlarge capacity so that it can
convey more water, and those are State definitions in Code, so the first one is definitely a repair, because
we are just trying top put pipe back the way it was, the second one, we called this an improvement just to
be safe, it isn't necessarily to increase capacity, it is just to give you another option for construction instead
of putting in pipe, so that would be an open ditch option for the red area on the map. Gallentine stated what
we would do is remove the main tile where it sets, and then we would install an open ditch there, so
essentially what we are doing is going back to the original design of 1906, whatever tile we encounter,
whether they are district tile or private tile, we outlet them into the open ditch. Gallentine stated this option
may require taking or paying for right of way, we will have to look back in the records, if back in 1906 these
landowners were paid for right of way a the time, and we are still working within that right of way today, they
probably wouldn't be paid right of way, now if we expand beyond those limits, there would probably be right
of way that would need to be taken, so that is something we haven't done yet. It was asked by a landowner
how many landowners are involved in this. Gallentine asked, if the landowners could tell us, he knows how
many forty acres there are but doesn't want to mis-speak. BA a landowner stated he lives on the west side
on the other side is another owner with a couple of heirs. Gallentine stated so two landowners.

Gallentine stated traditionally when you have increase capacity that is regarded as an improvement
however that isn't really the purpose of this project, the purpose of this project is to offer you another option
to get you a longer life on your facility, we just labeled it an improvement just to be safe, Gallentine does
not know if attorney Johnson has any thoughts on the matter. Johnson stated we wanted to do it that way
so that if someone wanted to vote against it, they could vote against it, a nd if we didn't treat it that way
they could object that we didn't give them the opportunity to object to it, so we are just playing it careful, so
that we don't have to go back and do anything over. Gallentine stated he should have made sure, that he
explained things a little bit, on a repair, the landowners always have input to the district, but on a repair
there isn't much a landowner can do to stop the repair in it's tracks. Gallentine stated on an improvement,
Code allows a certain percentage of landowners who own a certain percentage of ground within the district
to sign a remonstrance, and if they get those percentages met on an improvement project, they just stop,
there is no more talk about it, it may seem like a subtle distinction but there is different ramifications to
landowner rights there, Gallentine stated he did not think we have had a remonstrance filed. Smith stated
we have not had a remonstrance filed, Smith did receive comments today, that are a protest to the
assessment costs associated with either the repair or the improvement option. Gallentine stated he has
seen a remonstrance done a few times, on a district this large, it is really tough you have to get a lot of
people you have to get signed up who have to own a lot of ground, Galletine stated we usually see this in
smaller districts.

Gallentine stated the other thing he would say is that on improvements typically NRCS deems an
improvement to affect jurisdictional wetlands, because you have improved the drainage capacity beyond
what is existing already there, this case is a little different because in 1906 you had an open ditch and you



decreased capacity when you put in a tile, NRCS will let you go back to the greatest drainage you had prior
to 1985 or 1984, so they will probably let us go back to the 1906 design without deeming it an effect on
jurisdictional wetlands, you would have to talk to NRCS and verify that, we did not prior to this because that
is typically a conversation that takes several months, they have their staff down in Des Moines and when
yours gets to the top they will say okay and respond to this question when you get that back and say okay
now | have this question, your is back to the bottom. Gallentine stated we did this in Franklin County where
the original design was an open ditch and after everything settled out, they were okay with that and they
didn't deem that it affected jurisdictional wetlands. Gallentine stated but again, always recommend
landowners and tenants go and talk to the NRCS about things if something is sorted out at today's meeting.
Gallentine asked if there were questions on what we are proposing for the different options. No questions
were posed.

Gallentine stated next we will move on to costs, they are in the very back of the report, on page 9.
Gallentine stated this is for the repair, taking the red sections on the map and replacing with equivalent or
the next size available, so we went ahead and drew up these opinions of costs, Gallentine stated he would
say that in the last years prices are kind of all over the place. Gallentine stated especially on anything that
involves a product like pipe or tile, along with availabilities and all that, COVID is just wreaking havoc on the
supply chains in general, but it is CGA;s opinion that the district's portion of the cost in replacing the tile
would be $444,395.94, that is what the district would pay through it's assessment. Gallentine stated this
down here is just the crossing costs, so to cross that road, | Avenue Gallentine believes, per Code that cost
is assigned to the highway authorities, that would be paid by Secondary Roads or the County Engineer,
their portion of what we are estimating would be $35,362.50. Gallentine stated we separate those, that way
people are aware of who gets what. Gallentine asked if there were questions on those, hearing none,
Gallentine moved on to the next page for the open ditch costs.

Gallentine stated if we put in the open ditch instead of replacing the main tile with tile, CGA's opinion is the
cost for the district is $409,780.94, not a huge difference there, actually a decrease of $30,000. Gallentine
stated the road crossing portion costs, because we would put a box culvert underneath there, the cost to
the Road Authority is $174,886.25, so definitely a swing in their price, but it is Gallentine's understanding
that they are notified of these things, like anyone else they have the right to respond, whether it is the DOT
or the County Engineer, they typically don't voice an opinion one way or another. Gallentine stated those
are our opinion of costs and asked if there were questions on those, and again those are based on what we
have seen on previous bid lettings, we are not the guy out on the backhoe, therefor we would have to draw
up plans and specs, it would all have to go through a public bid process, lowest responsible bidder would
end up with the project. It was asked by a landowner if you went to an open ditch for that segment, what
happens if you get more water coming down the open ditch than what the tile that is buried on the
succeeding land can handle. Gallentine stated it is always interesting when you try to take water from
something that is open and try to put it into a pipe, that is always a point of even if you have similar flows, it
is just trying to get that configuration, at the railroad we would put some riprap around there to try to prevent
erosion. Gallentine stated if you have enough water that comes down there gets to the railroad, and gets to
that pipe and that pipe can't handle it, it would fill the ditch up and get to the point where it flows overland,
Gallentine believes the railroad has a bridge there, underneath that bridge, and onto the next landowner
downstream, no different than if you have ever been to the point where a road culvert can't handle it and it
starts to overtopping the road and goes over the top, it would do the same thing.

Rabe stated even on the other side of that it is kind if like a ditch anyway, going down to the east to the
railroad, the water would, there is a way for the water to travel where they put that road crossing. Gallentine
stated he was sure where they put that tile at was a low spot 100 and some years ago, and that is probably
where the water is still going to want to go, when the water gets to that point when the open ditch overtakes
the tile. Smith asked if there was a section of closed tile on the east side of the tracks. Gallentine stated
yes, that we did not investigate and none of this is proposing to do anything with from the railroad tracks to
approximately a mile downstream to JJ Ave, that would still be tile, that section and what is upstream of
this project would be the only main tile left in this, we didn't investigate anything downstream of that,
Gallentine doesn't know if it is any better or worse. It was asked by a landowner why the inspection stopped
there. Gallentine stated those were the only sinkholes we had, were on that side of the tracks, we hit the
end of the day and Gallentine stated he told Gehrke, do you want to go on the other side of the tracks, and
Gehrke stated there are no sinkholes over there, so Gallentine stated well we have to stop somewhere. The
landowner asked if they stopped not necessarily because they found better tile or you just had to make a



stopping point. Gallentine stated he does not know anything about the tile over there, on some accounts it
is the same age and you kind of get a little bit concerned but we also know the stuff on the west of the
tracks didn't have much cover, Gallentine stated he did not know if the stuff on the east side of the tracks
has more cover or not, it is broken, Gallentine assumed it, and it is another thing that it is a balance of how
much do you spend with a backhoe digging holes, and show up at a meeting and you guys tell me it is
broken. Rabe stated at the time when they were inspecting it, they said well where is our stopping and
starting point, we didn't even think about going any further, Rabe stated he knows we replaced some tile on
the east side a couple of times, he does not know what size it is but we replaced some. Gallentine stated
he imagines it is the same stuff. Rabe stated that is why we left off right there, once again dealing with the
railroad we didn't want to get them going again. Gallentine stated it is a pretty easy stopping point because
Gehrke has to either track around or load up, not because the tracks can't be gone over but because it
really gets appetizing to move on to the next job. It was stated by a landowner is that all we know from that
point is is what the farmer has to say. Gallentine stated truthfully we have done our investigation, but you
guys have been out there for years, Gallentine stated he has been working with this district for 6 years, but
that was on the open ditch and not necessarily on the tile, so Gallentine stated he always liked it when the
landowners can tell him more about t he tile than he knows. Gallentine asked for other questions on the
costs, hearing none Gallentine moved on to page 9 to discuss the classification.

Gallentine stated if he remembered right it was reclassified most recently a few years ago when we did
work on the open ditch so it is a fairly recent classification, we did talk about different code requirements
when we reclassify things, so Gallentine will leave that up to Johnson, but it is a fairly recent
reclassification.

Gallentine stated moving on to page 10, recommendations, we feel that there is a definite need to do one of
the two recommended actions, if neither one of these options moves forward we will have a lot more repairs
in the future and there is probably more repairs out there now that you could walk out and find. Gallentine
stated if one of those options moves forward, it will remove a lot of your restrictions and you will get a lot
longer life span, that type of thing, so we recommend the District Trustees approve the report, which they
did, talk to Johnson about whether the open ditch alternate is a repair or an improvement, which they did,
have the hearing, which we are doing today and then adopt one of our recommendations of the report, direct
CGA to draw up plans and specs, for whichever option, and then proceed to bid letting, and receive bids
from contractors. Gallentine would recommend we try and shoot for a winter bid letting, we tend to get
better prices in the January, February, March range, and then construction would be next year. Gallentine
asked if there were questions on that, he has seen quite a few of you folks at different hearings, he know
quite a few of you have been through this before. Rabe asked about the wetlands thing, it takes quite a
while to get a determination of their findings, how does that affect schedules. Gallentine stated if you said
go ahead to day we could email the NRCS right away, and say this is what we have going on today, what
do you think. Gallentine stated he did run some rough numbers, some landowners had talked about why
don;t we run the whole thing to JJ Ave., for the district portion, that stretches a little bit longer, you are
probably going to add $500,000. Gallentine stated if you wanted to go all along the red line on the map. A
landowner asked if that would be adding $500,000 to the numbers Gallentine has there, Gallentine stated
yes, because that portion is a little bit longer than what we had there, and if that is the option you folks
want to look at and you want to pursue, we would have t draw up a supplement to our report and have
another hearing. Gallentine asked if that is what Johnson thought, Johnson replied absolutely. Gallentine
stated and the road crossing costs would double, Gallentine stated he does know that probably won't affect
anyone in this room directly but we have another culvert at JJ AVe we would have to put in. A landowner
stated two more road crossings actually, Gallentine stated he saw that and was hoping we could get a little
creative on the reroute. It was asked by a landowner, whose costs were where it crosses the railroad.
Gallentine stated he would let Johnson chime in if he is mistating anything, railroads are always an
interesting beast, and what Gallentine would envision if we go all the way across or all the way to JJ Ave.
Gallentine stated you have a couple of options, you can tell the railroad we want to put a bridge there, with
the understanding that if you put a bridge at a natural watercourse, the railroad bears that whole expense,
not the district, that will probably take time to get through that process, the other option in Gallentine's mind
is to at each side of the railroad right of way, we stop, we put riprap around the tile that is there and we just
leave the tile that is there through the railroad right of way, and if the water gets too high it flows up over it
and goes under the bridge that is there, and when it drops back down it goes back into the open ditch, and
we don't do any work inside the railroad right of way and we don't ask them to do any work. Gallentine
stated those are two different options.



Gallentine asked Johnson if he had any comments on the railroad, Johnson stated you are right on, if we
decided we needed a bridge, we could notify them of that and give them the opportunity to do that
themselves, and they would submit that as a claim, but the Code is very clear, this has been litigated, if it
is a bridge or a culvert on their dime, so if it is a bridge or a culvert they have to pay for it, just like it he
roads have to pay for their crossings, so if we put closed tile through their land, then it would be on the
district, at least we are not going, through an embankment if there is already a bridge there, that is where
the costs get ridiculous is going through their bed, so Johnson is encouraged by the fact that we don't have
a bed to drill through. Gallentine stated they will make us drill if we put tile in, Johnson stated yes, but we
wouldn't have all those extra casings, Gallentine stated hopefully not. Johnson stated it is never easy,
Gallentine stated he didn't say this, this is isn't Gallentine's quote, but had a landowner tell him one time
you don't have railroad going through your property, you have a little sliver of North Korea, good luck dealing
with it. Gallentine stated that isn't his quote, but that was what a landowner told him, if you want to work
that out, NRCS is fast compared to the railroad, the last railroad project that we worked on the railroad
started out with 5 questions, we answered those, they came back with 10 questions, we answered those
they came back with 15, about that time the attorneys got involved because the number of questions
involved kept mushrooming. Johnson stated maybe doing it in two separate projects might be best, if you
come back and investigate the rest of that tile an find out it is just as bad, if we do this project first we could
stop right at the right of way of the railroad, and then have that in there, we could do it to explain to firm it
up, then a year later you could do the east side open ditch and just not do anything under the railroad, they
don't usually beg for an improvement to go under the railbed, they can do a mandamus action that says you
repaired everything else, you need to come back and repair the rest, they frankly don't care about the
effectiveness of your drain, they don't really care about your drain, as long as there is not a sinkhole under
their part. Johnson stated there is a good chance if we did the west half first, and then you did the east half
second, and just left the rest alone, Johnson doubts they would do a mandamus that says fix what is
underneath our bed as well, so as long as there is no obvious problems, Gallentine stated he is not aware
of any problems in the right of way, and even usually what the railroad complains about most is the bill, so
Gallentine does not know even if you did it all in one project if they would complain, it is hard to say.
Johnson stated even if you didn't have any tile in their right of way anyway, it is in the location of a natural
waterway, with that, they have to put up a bridge to span that distance, that is one solution to not having a
wet roadbed, is to put a bridge across it. Gallentine stated they already have a bridge there, and our tile is
underneath that bridge. Gallentine stated he does not think it is very long. Johnson asked is it a railroad car
or two long. Rabe stated he would say it is more like 50'. Johnson asked if the bridge was wood or steel,
Gallentine stated it was wood, like every other one, old and dilapidated, truthfully. Rabe stated there is a big
pole on either side. Gallentine stated in the early 1900's the railroad put a bridge in there and drove one of
the pilings directly through the tile, so they were demanded upon to appear before the Supervisors to
explain that.

A landowner asked as we talk about extending this or on any other project, the road costs are not paid by
the district, is that correct. Gallentine stated yes, whether it is a bridge, culvert or tile, those are strictly the
road authority, railroads are the only ones that don't have to pay directly for the tile but they do for bridges
and culverts, if you put it at a natural water crossing. A landowner asked if you make it an open ditch,
whereas right now with tile, it is shallow enough you can just drive right across it, but if you make that an
open ditch you have to have a crossing and put a bridge or a culvert underneath, and that costs is the
drainage districts. Gallentine stated none of those costs are in here, and he supposes those costs need to
be talked about or discussed as far as if landowners feel they need that and if so, is that a district expense.
It was stated by a landowner it has to be on here, Gallentine stated there is no hard and fast law.
Landowner stated he is not clear what he is asking. Rabe stated he did not think you could put in a culvert
for an open ditch, you would have to go over it with a bridge. Gallentine stated this might be small enough
up in here you might get by with a culvert. Rabe stated he knows we had that problem with Vierkandt.
Gallentine stated if this farmer states he really needs access from one side or the other, and | put a culvert
or a crossing in here, who pays for that, do | pay for that or does the district pay for that. Johnson stated
that is a sensitive issue, and we are dealing with that in Wright County, and there are different perspectives
on it, one perspective is that you have a 40 acres tract that you can get across right now without a problem,
then they put an open ditch in and you are landlocked and you can't access your land, there is an argument
that the district's supervisors should give you a way to the other side of your property so it is not made
useless. Johnson stated then if a person wants more than one crossing, that is more of a convenience than
an necessity, Johnson stated you have to look at it on a case by case basis to see how much it really
effects that property, if they really are landlocked and cut off or not. Johnson tries to be neutral on that,



some districts try to be really hard on that and say that is your private crossing, Johnson does not
necessarily agree with that philosophy, and he really doesn't try to go all the way to the other extreme
either, Johnson just looks at it case by case and tries to see what is fair. Gallentine stated the one thing he
sees pretty consistently is, maybe you see it differently, once that crossing is put in no matter who pays for
it, typically after that point, it's upkeep and replacement is all that landowner. Johnson stated he is not sure
of that philosophy either, because there are cases where there is a land bridge, and you have a 36" tile and
the district wants to upgrade everything to a 48" tile so should the landowner have to put in a 48" when that
is what the district wants. Johnson stated there is an exception to every rule, but is the district responsible
for putting the gravel across it every 5 or 10 years, well it depends on how nice you want your crossing to
be, that's the landowners, so there is some give and take. Gallentine stated we did a project up in Franklin,
where we did a crossing like this and we actually used a tanker car that was around 7-1/2" in diameter, and
the crossing was only about 5' deep so they actually dug it down and buried it into the muck about a foot,
foot and a half, so that might be something that we could possibly do here, depending on the depth, it was
a pretty reasonable length. A landowner asked what was done on Vierkandt's. Rabe stated there is
supposed to be a bridge, it is on Hanson's ground over there. Gallentine stated that is the problem, if you
get to be too deep a ditch, those things come in pretty much one length, and if you have too deep a ditch
and too high an embankment then it gets really narrow so you can't travel across them, it really isn't too
economical to try and weld two of them together, | have this one size lincoln log that needs to just fit in this
one spot, so that might be an option.

Gallentine asked if there were any other questions. Johnson asked he would like to know how many of the
landowners think they might need a crossing over the open ditch so that might be included in the cost.
Gallentine stated we have one of these two owners here, and you are on the west side, Gallentine asked
are you thinking you will need a crossing or not. The landowner stated while we are doing this, yes that
there is 450' of deep ditch so | can't get across coming west from the road, and the lowest area, when it is
dry out, | can cross that, and would like to be able to do that in the future, where exactly would you put that
crossing, he is not agnostic about that. Gallentine asked if you are west of | Ave, is that correct. The
landowner stated yes, that is correct. Gallentine stated so your are right here, with some in CRP. The
landowner stated yes, immediately west of the road, which has a deeper ditch with the tile in the bottom of
it, where | cannot cross, but in that lowest area described in the illustration that has the CRP, that is flat,
enough to cross it when it is dry enough. Johnson asked if the filed entrances on both sides of | Ave., there
is a crossing almost at the railroad there, and then it is a half mile north to get back into the field. Gallentine
asked if the owner owned a 40 acre plot or 80 acres or 160 acres. The landowner stated he he owned 306
there in total. Johnson asked if there was a crossing north of | Ave, in the other 40 acre parcel. Gallentine
stated no he said it was a half mile, so it is up here on the other side of the screen. Gallentine asked if
instead of a crossing on the open ditch, what if we put in a couple of driveways on the roadside because
that is cheaper, and some landowners would be happier with that, assuming the County Engineer is on
board. The landowner stated that would probably work, you still have to get us 30" head down the road, it it
is too short it doesn't work. Gallentine stated sometimes you have to adjust the angle or make them wider if
they are too short, especially on this one. The landowner stated that was doable. Gallentine stated those
are cheaper and they are easier to maintain as they are out of more water flow. Gallentine asked if the
landowner on the east side was here, it was stated by a landowner that no, he lives in Kentucky and there
are two other heirs in Kansas City, and one may be local, this landowner used to rent that on the east side,
and dealt only with the Kentucky owner. Gallentine asked if his tenant was here. Landowner stated his
tenant is Todd Kjormoe, not here. Johnson asked if the landowner knew any about those field entrances to
the east on | Ave. Landowner stated they are just south of the ditch, here is a crossing and pointed out the
other entrances, we have never been able to cross that, that is relatively deep. Gallentine stated there is a
waterway there, and that is deep enough you just don't cross it. The landowner stated that was correct, we
have not been able to cross that since 1979. Gallentine stated you have some good history there. Johnson
stated we can't put it on the district to make things better, we just have to make sure it works. Gallentine
stated we just have to make people whole again, that is a good point.

Gallentine stated if we put access points on both sides of the the ditch, versus crossing in the ditch, that
would be cheaper, plus they are easier to maintain and less likely to wash out. Johnson stated the County
will complain because the cost will be on them, but we may be able to find a compromise on that.
Gallentine stated Engineer Roll is pretty good to deal with, the one we did in Franklin County, we did a few
of those too, and the Engineer in Franklin County just said he would build those himself, because they are
pretty easy to build. It was asked how deep would the ditch be. Gallentine stated we would have to go back
to the 1906 design, and he would assume the 1906 flowline was the same as the tile. A landowner asked if



something wasn't working would it have been the depth of the ditch or their engineering and would we even
know that now. Gallentine stated this happens somewhat in the early time frame, where maybe it was dry,
and they just said hey we need to be able to farm over this, Gallentine stated it is a pain to farm around an
open ditch now, he could not imagine how hard that would have been with a team of mules, or a steam
engine or F20 or something how long it would take to track around, so Gallentine stated he thinks it was
more a lot of access issues than anything.

A landowner asked why we have to dig up the old tile, why can't it be collapsed, why do we have to dig it
up, what does it mean in the report that we have to remove the old tile. Gallentine stated typically we
remove the old tile when we install the new tile because if you have this 26" or 28" void, Gallentine does not
want someone in the future driving along out there, and all of sudden it collapses, to Gallentine it is a safety
factor, we have done a few of these where we haven't removed a tile, but those are 8" or 10" if something
like collapses it is just gone, but when you start talking about 2' it can cause issues. Gallentine is sure the
Trustees don't want to be taking calls for the next 10 years, hey | have a sinkhole the size of semi, come
fill it in for me, if you don't remove that old tile, there is some liability and expense there, that is just
Gallentine's thinking. A landowner asked if the old tile would be crushed when the new tile is installed.
Gallentine stated this is big enough it would be installed with backhoe. The landowner asked if they can run
a plow through the old tile and let it collapse. Gallentine stated that is an option, the nice thing about
digging up and removing the old tile, you can see all the private tile coming in, if you collapse it, it becomes
a jumble of clay pieces and you can't tell if that was a 6" or if that was off of this. Gallentine stated
Engineer's try to make things a little bit more bulletproof or complicated maybe, but we want to make sure
all of those private tile are hooked back up, and that gets back to the district trying to make people back
whole how they were prior to the project.

Rabe asked if there were any more questions for Gallentine. Smith stated we have some public comments
that were received prior to the hearing, if you don't mind, maybe we can go over those. Rabe stated sure.
Smith stated we received some questions from Jon Hamilton and Scott Bahrite about the land east of the
tracks, the question was is it a possibility to remove the closed tile east of the tracks and continue on down
to the open ditch where the tile currently outlets in the open ditch to the southeast.Smith stated if you look
at the image on the right side of the tracks, that closed tile will continue about 1 mile to the east where it
outlets into the open ditch. Smith will let Gallentine address that, and maybe we can go down each
question as we go through. Gallentine stated that is what we talked about, if you wanted to extend the
project east of the railroad right of way, make that also open ditch,a continuous open ditch, you are going to
add about $500,000 to the district costs, and about another $175,000 for the Secondary Roads costs, but e
would have to draw up a supplement report and have another hearing and everyone has a chance to voice
their thoughts and opinions on that, and that is about a mile. Johnson stated they didn't really say that
there was a problem did they. Smith stated there was a concern that currently we received a comment
today from Dianne Hamilton who is Trustee on the Dorothy Bahrite parcels to the east which we are pulling
up on the map, Dorothy's concern was concerning the assessment for this, she is protesting the
assessment of the costs for this parcel, because she has two spots on the east side of the tracks, totalling
about 8 acres, 20% of the parcel which is readily seen on Beacon, she states that the proposed repair is
entirely upstream of this location and the repair will most likely only compound the problem. by putting
more water into the county tile, the problem is also compounded by additional pattern tiling that has
happened upstream of her site, which is also adding additional water, there seems to be no credit for the
acres that have been lost to support the drainage system through these parcels. Smith stated when we
view the map and turn on our drainage districts and parcels, you see here that on the north part of this
parcel, that contains the letters DD 3, that is a closed tile that continues on slightly to the southeast there
and will go to the open ditch a little bit further down.

Gallentine stated essentially what we are talking about now and what we talked about before, upstream of
the railroad tracks, is what we were talking about before, and what we talking about now is east of the
tracks, right there at JJ Ave, at the T intersection, just southeast there, that is where the open ditch starts.
Gallentine stated people have concerns about the closed tile which starts right there that we did not look at.
Johnson stated on one instance that is kind of an objection, and in another instance it is a request for a
repair, because whenever there is a repair that needs to be made, Code says they have to make it so that
everyone can have a good system, so that kind of opens the door to do you want to do one project and then
do the second project so will you have two different assessments or do you want to do them both at the
same time, Johnson stated he should say we would have to task the Engineers officially to appoint them to



do go and check into that, this is something that the Trustees will have to decide, and it kind of has to be
done because of that letter, they are going to have to task an Engineer to go out and look at that and find
out what is going on out there. Smith stated that was received today just prior to the meeting. Gallentine
stated under some certain circumstances he thinks it would flow ok once the flow is enough that the 36" or
whatever size the tile is can handle, but definitely under other circumstances that tile will not handle as
much as the open ditch and you will have overland flow, it just depends on how much.

Smith stated the other public comment we received prior to the hearing was from George loerger, and he
asks if the DD 3 project moves forward and would be completed, would it be assessed on the existing 2016
classification or would the district be reclassified and the project assessed under a new classification.
Johnson asked if CGA was involved in the reclassification. Gallentine stated yes, we did that
reclassification. Johnson stated just because there is a project, doesn't mean there has to be a
reclassification just because it costs money, but if there are any factors that might affect the fairness of the
2016 reclassification, if they were brought to the attention of the Board or the Engineer, that would be on
thing that would compel us to do another reclassification, so the question is, is anybody aware of anything
unusual that has changed that would justify a reclassification. Johnson stated you can plug in a $400,000
project cost and you are not going to like it no matter what, and you could say what is this going to result in
me paying, so you already have an idea, you may not like the dollar amount. Rabe stated we already have
and it is right here in the estimate. Johnson asked if anyone sees anything glaring or inequitable about how
that came out. Gallentine asked if everyone knew what a classification and a reclassification was and if not
would you like Gallentine to cover some of this. Gallentine stated he has seen a lot of these folks at other
hearings and meetings and does not want to bore them to death, but can bore them a little.

It was asked by a landowner if this is going to be an open ditch at the upper end, and its costs are called
an improvement, then it needs to be voted on by the district, or can be objected to. Gallentine stated it can
be objected, but it is not voted on by the district, that objection had to have a certain percentage of
landowners, who 70% of the land need to sign it and file it. Johnson stated that was correct. Gallentine
stated it can be done, but on a district this big, it gets to be tough, some are out of stated landowners and
the DOT will never sign because they don't want to interfere with local government affairs, and some
landowners just won't. Johnson stated he hates to open up this door, but Johnson wants the landowners to
get what they want, if you come to a meeting and you hear about what this project involves for the first time,
there are a lot of people that really just don't want it and you have some questions that maybe we want to
get answers to, Johnson is not opposed to suggesting the Board continue it another 4 weeks, because if
there is a majority of landowners that own 70% of the ground and they don't want it, it shouldn't't happen in
Johnson's opinion regardless of procedure. Johnson stated if there is a huge ground-swelling of adversity to
the project, we want to know about it. Gallentine stated he agrees with that, and technically if this was all
supposed to be filed today but a remonstrance was made tomorrow, Gallentine stated he could tell the
Board wait a minute, he knows it wasn't technically correct, but you need to pay attention to this, would be
Gallentine's opinion and he is sure Johnson agrees. Johnson stated the rules are not supposed to be so
technical that you are procedured out of something you wanted. Gallentine stated in his opinion these
facilities are the district's facilities and you folks compose the district, and that is what it is there for is to
serve you folks.

Johnson asked what was Gallentine's response to the fact that we now have a landowner on record saying
they want to at least investigate some problems in that tile, Johnson has to advise the Trustees and they all
recognize that they have to task the Engineer to go out and study that, how does that play into, doing it in
one stage versus two stages. Gallentine stated recommending doing it in two stages. Gallentine does not
think many land owners like getting an assessment this year, getting another one next year and getting one
the year after, Gallentine would just as soon present the total package just so no one goes well you split
this up so we wouldn't know what the total cost was going to be, but that is just his opinion. Johnson asked
you mean two stages of one project. Gallentine stated yes you would probably get more interest if you bid it
in bigger projects so if you want to do both of them, let's bid it both together, the reports would have to be
separate obviously on the front end, but Gallentine stated he thinks if we combined them at the bid phase.
Johnson asked if time was a huge factor, how much damage is it causing by the sinkholes if you wait.
Gallentine stated we already did temporary repairs, as far as Gallentine knows they are all current, and
nothing is sucking in dirt from the surface, so that is not an issue. Johnson asked if we would have time to
get new reports and bid it together. Gallentine stated we would do a supplemental report for this one, and
you are looking at probably a month to get that supplemental done, Gallentine would not do a huge amount



of investigation, he would not go out and dig the tile up, rely on what we have found so far, these crops may
not be what people want but Gallentine does not want to tear them down, we can wait till harvest.

Heinzeroth asked if any of the landowners object to an open ditch, is any of that formable right now. It was
stated by a landowner that this crop was so wet, it is in CRP right now and he is happy to have it that way,
and is in favor of an open ditch, and we just establish it in it's 1913 capacity with all of the tile that has been
added, that may not be what we want to live with for the next 100 years. Rabe stated Sialaf's was too, it
was deep down there and he said you can't really get through it, you are not going to disturb a whole lot
down there either because it all grass, the center of the tile is probably 20" on each side of it or more. A
landowner stated yes the section we are talking about is basically no crop to worry about it is either closed
ditch that can't be farmed or CRP, you could start tomorrow as far as he is concerned. Gallentine stated we
would end up a little wider by the time you take those spoils and spread them out so they are halfway flat.
Johnson asked how detailed are the engineer's plans from 1913, is there a map on file with their designs.
Gallentine stated there is, it is a little shaky, it gives you a bottom width, we haven't found how steep the
side slopes were yet so we would be bound to that bottom width, Gallentine believes it is a 4' bottom, sides
if Gallentine had to guess, from back then would be a 1:1 so for every foot you go up you go over 1 foot, or
maybe 1-1/2:1 so you go up a foot and go out a foot and half, if we build them today we really like 2:1's
because they don't slough as bad, but at least there is enough of a design to prove to the NRCS this was
an open ditch.

Johnson asked as far as easement is concerned. Gallentine stated that we haven't dug into. Gallentine
stated the report didn't specify an easement width and Gallentine has not dug into the damage claims
enough to see what people were paid, Gallentine stated he saw that some claims were paid out. Rabe
asked if there were any more comments or questions. Hearing none, the Trustees moved on to the
Discussion.

. Comments/Discussion

Rabe asked what the Trustees thought and what is Johnson's recommendation, can we table this for 4
weeks or out. Rabe asked what time it takes Gallentine to generate a supplement report, can we table this
for another stretch, and come back to it in a few weeks. Johnson stated there would be a motion to table
this and a motion to go out and study part of it and have him file his report as soon as he can, and then you
can schedule the next hearing, we would like to be able to schedule the next hearing while you are all here
in the room, because then we don't have to publish and mail it again, so that way we don't have to give
Gallentine too little time, so we could go out 6 weeks, from this meeting so we don't have to republish and
re-mail. Prochaska asked if we do this in one project, how is that going to affect the railroad crossing, can
we discuss that at all. Gallentine stated we can discuss both those options in the next report, talk about
either tasking the railroad to put in a whole new bridge to whatever the flowline is the same as the open
ditch, or not touching anything in the right of way, you guys can make that call, the landowners have
spoken. Johnson asked if we can give the railroad the option of saying we are just keeping it closed under
the bridge, it is your bridge you can do whatever you want, but if they want us to put an open ditch
underneath them they are not going to like the costs, we are not going to like the hassle. Johnson stated
maybe we can give them the option to maybe leave it alone, why would they want us to dig the open ditch
under the bridge. Gallentine stated he did not know why they would want that. Johnson asked if we can run
it open and then close it and go back to open. Gallentine stated he is fine with that.

Heinzeroth stated just so it does not go through the railroad property around to someone else's property to
do damage. Gallentine stated he does not think it will, because obviously right now any water that doesn't
go through the tile goes over the surface anyway, and that bridge has been adequate and it hasn't washed
out yet. Heinzeroth stated he doesn't necessarily worry about the railroad just as long as we don't drown
out the Bartlett's down below with something we made into a dam. Gallentine stated what we would
probably do on the downstream side of the railroad tracks, to get that surface water, we would have a little
bit of a riprap stilling area, so we would install riprap, in a pool shape, and then have an intake to try and
slow that energy and probably have a headwall there too, that way it doesn't erode back. Heinzeroth stated
that would probably add a little bit of cost, but not tremendous. Gallentine stated he didn't think so as long
as steel doesn't go out of sight like copper and everything else, | mean lumber, we don't build it out of wood
that's for sure. Prochaska asked Gallentine if he could give them an option for either way. Gallentine stated
that there could be an option for either way. Rabe asked if we had anyone had issues with an open ditch.



Rabe stated that one objection is that we fix it but that's not really an objection because water is going over
in her field if we do an open ditch that would take care of it. Heinzeroth stated that we would be doubling the
cost but that is something that has to be done in the future anyway. Heinzeroth stated all we'd be doing is
delaying it. Heinzeroth stated he knows it needs to be done and he knows it will cost a lot of money.
Gallentine stated that CGA's field investigation is not going to be the same on this portion.

Motion by Heinzeroth to continue the hearing for the Engineer's report to September 13th at 10:00 AM.
Second by Prochaska. All ayes. Motion carried.

In additional discussion, Johnson asked the Trustees to move to appoint GBA to be the Engineers to
investigate the condition of the Main tile to the East of the railroad to JJ Avenue and report back to us by
September 13th.

Motion by Prochaska to appoint GBA to be the Engineers to investigate the condition of the Main tile East
of the railroad to JJ Avenue and report back. Second by Heinzeroth. All ayes. Motion Carried.

. Possible Action

. Other Business

. Adjourn Meeting

Motion by Heinzeroth to adjourn. Second by Prochaska. All ayes. Motion carried.


https://www.hardincountyia.gov/81143d13-c5da-4ed6-9133-7935edc46773



